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AM Holdco Limited

Strategic Report
Year Ended 31 December 2015

Principal Objectives and Strategies

The principal objectives of the company are to operate as a holding company for its investments

Review of the Business

The entity transitianed from previous UK GAAP to FRS 102 as at 1 January 2014 The accounts for
both years are presented under FRS 102, the adjustments to the prior year reported financial position

and financial performance are given in note 17

The loss for the year, after taxation, amounted to £(743,730) (2014 £(398,947})) The company's
performance for the year 15 in line with the director's expectations

Future Developments

The directors intend for the business to continue to hold its interests in the investments

Key Performance Indicators

The performance of the company's iInvestments from a cash perspective 15 assessed six monthly on a
group basis by the testing of the covenants of the senior debt provider  The key indicator being the debt
service cover ratio  The company's investments have been performing well and has been compliant
with the cavenants laid out in the group loan agreement

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

In the directors' view the only significant nsks or uncertainty s 1n relation to the performance of the
underlying investments The performance is reviewed regularly and the directors are satisfied with i,

This report was approved by the board of directors on LA3NE Wb and signed on behalf of the board

. —

John | Cavill
Director



AM Holdco Limited
Directors’' Report

Year Ended 31 December 2015

The directors present their report and the fhinancial statements of the company for the year ended
31 December 2015

Directors

The directors who served the company duning the year and up to the date of this report were as follows

John | Cavill
Jonathan P Doberman (Apponted 17 March 2016)
Andrew Matthews (Resigned 7 Apnl 2015)

BIIF Corporate Services Limited  (Resigned 17 March 2016)

Dividends

The result for the year will be transferred to reserves

Going Concern

The company has net liabilities of £9,104,640 (2014 £8,356,827) The financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis as the company's shareholders have confirmed the loan due to the

immediate parent company will not be required to be repaid within twelve months from the balance sheet
date

Financial Instruments
The company has no significant financial instruments
Small Company Provisions ‘

This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies entitled to the
small companies exemption

This report was approved by the beard of directars on LI INE 2dd(, ang signed on behalf of the board
by

= /

Infrastructure Managers Lumlted
Company Secretary

Registered oftice
Cannon Place

78 Cannon Street
London

EC4N 6AF



AM Holdco Limited
Directors' Responsibilities Statement

Year Ended 31 December 2015

The directors are responsible for praparing the Strategic Report, Directors' Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that
law the directors have prepated the financial statements in accordance with applcable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland (FRS 102)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satistied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affars of the company and the profit or loss of the
company for that penod In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
. make Judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements,

. notify its shareholders in writing about the use of disclosure exemptions, if any, of FRS 102 used in
the preparation of financial statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless ® 1s inappropnate to presume
that the company wiil continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial
postticn of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006 They are also respansible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

In so far as the directors are aware
. there 15 no relevant audit iInformation of which the company's auditors are unaware, and

. the directors have taken all steps that they cught to have taken to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

The auditor is deemed to have been re-appointed in accordance with section 487 of the Companies Act
2006

The Directors' Responsibiiies were approved by the board on LI 2ol and signed on its behalf
by

-

John } Cavill
Director

Registered office
Cannon Place

78 Cannon Street
London

EC4N BAF



AM Holdco Limited

Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of AM Holdco Limited
Year Ended 31 December 2015

Our Opinion
In our opinicn, AM Holdco Limited's financial statements (the "financial statements")

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2015 and of its
loss for the year then ended,

. have been properly prepared in accordance with Umited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

What we have audited

The financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the "Annuval
Report"}, comprise

. the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015,

. the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended,

. the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and

. the Notes to the Financial Statements, which include a summary of sigruficant accounting poficies
and other explanatory information

The financial reporting framework that has been appbed 1n the preparation of the financial statements 1s
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland®

In applying the financial reporting framework, the diectors have made a number of subjective
fudgements, for example In respect of significant accounting estmates In making such estimates, they
have made assumptions and considered future events.

Opinion on Other Matter Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the information given in the Strategic Report and the Oirectors' Report for the financial
period for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on Which We are Required to Report by Exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report ta you i, in our opinion

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

) adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not wisited by us, or

. the financal statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility



AM Holdco Limited

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of AM Holdco Limited (continued)
Year Ended 31 December 2015

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in our opinion, certain disclosures of
directors' remuneration specified by law are not made We have no exceptions to report ansing from this
respensibiiity

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditor
Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilitties Statement set out on page 4, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view

Our responsibility 15 to audtt and express an opinton on the hinancia! statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) ("ISAs (UK & Ireland)”) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a
body 1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006 and for no other purpose We
do not, in gving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by
our pnor consent In writing

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements
We conducted our audit in accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland) An audit involves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance

that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error Thig
includes an assessment of

. whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

. the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and
. the overall presentation of the {mancai statements

We primarnily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against availlable
evidence, forming our own judgements, and evaluating the disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using samphng and other auditing techmques, to the extent we
consider necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions We obtain audt evidence
through testing the effectiveness of controls, substantwe procedures or a combination of both



AM Holdco Limited
Independent Auditors' Report to the Members of AM Holdco Limited (continved)
Year Ended 31 December 2015

In addwon, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify
matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that s
apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in
the course of performing the audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
mnconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

G;uﬂu;.e Pﬂé(ﬂd(f\

Caroline Roxburgh (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditors
Edinburgh

Q.?dumr, doll



AM Holdco Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended 31 December 2015

Admirustrative expenses

Operating loss

income from participating interests
Other interest receivable and similar income
Interest payable and similar charges

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax on loss on ardinary activities

Loss for the financial year and total comprehensive income

All the activities of the company are frem continuing operations

Note

@~

2015 2014

£ £
(2,769) (2,688)
(2,769) (2,688)
570,442 1,155,737
2,011,814 1,804,037
(3,642,388)  (3,807,457)
(1,062,901)  (760,371)
319,171 361,424
(743,730}  (398,947)

The notes on pages 11 to 18 form part of these financial statements

-8-




AM Holdco Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014

Note £ £
Fixed assets
Investments 10 65,879,812 66,062,858
Current assets
Debtors due within one year 1 11,642,585 9,869,756
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 12 (86,622,954) (84,289,441)
Net current liabilities (74,980,369) (74,419,685)
Total assets less current habilities (9,100,557) (8B,356,827)
Net liabilities (9,100,557) (8,356,827)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 13 1 1
Retained earnings 14 {9,100,558) (B8,356,828)
Shareholders’ deficit (9,100,557) (B,356,827)

{hese financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised
LIUNE 20l , and are signed on behalf of the board by

LE—A

John | Cawill
Director

Company registration number 06387403

The notes on pages 11 to 18 form part of these financial statements.

-9-
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AM Holdco Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
Year Ended 31 December 2015

At 1 January 2014

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive iIncome for the year
At 31 December 2014
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

At 31 December 2015

Called up
share capital
£

-t

—

I-‘l

Retained

earnings Total
£ £
{(7,957,881) (7,957,880)
(398,947)  (398,947)
(398,947)  (398,947)
(8,356,828) (8,356,827)
(743,730) (743,730)
(743,730) (743,730)
(9,100,558) (9,100,557)

The notes on pages 11 to 18 form part of these financial statements.

-10 -



AM Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 December 2015

1

Statement of comphance

The individual financial statements of AM Holdcoe Limited have been prepared in complance with
Unuited Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102")
and the Companies Act 2006

General information

AM Holdco Limited {'the company’) 1s incorporated and domiciled in the UK The address of its
registered office 1s Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6AF

The principal activity of the company duning the year was as an investment holding company
The company’s functienal and presentation currency 1s the pound sterling

Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the histoncal cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and habilities

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
cntical accounting estimates It also requires managament to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the company's accounting policies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed further in the accounting policies

The accounting policies stated below have been consistently applied to the years presented,
unless otherwise stated The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and apphlicable Accounting Standards
in the United Kingdom

Going concern

The company has nat habilities of £9,104,640 (2014 £8B,356,827) The financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis as the company's shareholders have confirmed the loan
due to the iImmediate parent company will not be required to be repaid within twelve months from
the balance sheet date

Transition to FRS 102

The entity transiboned from previous UK GAAP to FRS 102 as at 1 January 2014. Detalls of how
FRS 102 has affected the reported financial position and financial performance 1s given in note 17

-11-



AM Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Year Ended 31 December 2015

3.

Accounting policies (continued)
Disclosure exemptions

The entity satisfies the cntena of being a quahtying entity as detined in FRS 102 lis financial
statements are consoldated into the financial statements of BIIF Holdco Limited which can be
obtained from Company Secretary at Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6AF As
such, advantage has been taken of the following disclosure exemptions available under paragraph
112 of FRS 102

{a) No cash flow statement has been presented tor the company
{b) Disclosures in respect of financial iInstruments have not been presented

Consolidation

The company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of BIIF Holdco Limited, a company incorperated in the
EEA In accardance with Section 400 of the Companies Act 2066, 1s not required to produce, and
has not published, consolidated accounts

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported These estimates and judgements are
continually reviewed and are based on expenence and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances

Accounting estimates and assumptions are made concerning the future and, by therr nature, wiil
rarely equal the related actual outcome The key assumptions and other sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows

1) Impairment of assets

The carrying value of those assets recorded 1n the Company's balance sheet, at amortised cost,
could be materally reduced where circumstances exist which might indicate that an asset has been
impaired and an impairment review 1 performed Imparment reviews consider the farr value and or
value in use of the potentially impaired asset or assets and compares that with the carrying value of
the asset or assets in the balance sheet Any reduction in value ansing from such a review would
be recorded in the statement of comprehensive mcome Impairment reviews involve the significant
use of assumptions Consideration has to be given as to the price that could be obtained for the
asset or assets, or in refation to a consideration of value in use, estimates of the future cash flows
that could be generated by the potentally impaired asset or assets, together with a consideration of
an appropnate discount rate to apply to those cash flows

-12-



AM Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

Year Ended 31 December 2015

3

Accounting policies (continued)
income tax

Taxation expense for the penod compnrses current and deferred tax recogmised in the reporting
period Tax is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the extent that it
relates to tems recognised In other comprehensive income or directly in equity [n this case tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively

Current or deferred taxation assets and habilities are not discounted

1) Current Tax

Current tax 1s the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or pnor
years Tax I1s calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the penod end Management penodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation It establishes
provisions where appropnate on the basis of amounis expected to be paid to the tax authorities

Investments

Fixed asset investments are inally recorded at cost, and subsequently stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses

Listed investments are measured at far value with changes In farr value being recognised in profit
or loss

Investments in associates

fnvestments in associates accounted for in accordance with the cost model are recorded at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses

Investments in assoclates accounted for in accordance with the farr value model are inially
recorded at the transaction price At each reporting date, the investments are measured at farr
value, with changes m fair value recognised in other comprehensive incame/profit or loss Where it
IS impracticable to measure fair value reliably without undue cost or eftort, the cost model will be
adopted

Dwvidends and other distributions recewved from the investment are recogrused as income without
regard to whether the distnbutions are from accumulated profits of the associate ansing before or
after the date of acquisition

Investments In joint ventures

Investments in jointly controlled entities accounted tor in accordance with the cost model are
recorded at cost less any accumulated impairment losses

investments in jointly controlled entities accounted for 1n accordance with the fair value model are
inially recorded at the transaction price At each reporting date, the investments are measured at
fair value, with changes in far value recognised in other comprehensive income/profit or loss
Where it 1s imprachcable to measure farr value reliably without undue cost or effort, the cost model
will be adopted

-13 -



AM Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Year Ended 31 December 2015

3. Accounting policies fcontinued)
Investments in joint ventures fcontinued)

Dividends and other distributions receved from the investment are recognised as income without
regard to whether the distnbutions are from accumulated profits of the joint venture ansing before
or after the date of acquisition

4.  Auditors' remuneration
The audit fee of £2,769 (2014 £2,688) was borne by another group company
5. Particulars of employees and directors

The average number of persons employed by the company duning the financial year, including the
directors, amounted to nil (2014 nil) The directors did not receive any remuneration from the
Company during the year (2014 £nil)

6. Income from participating interests

2015 2014
£ £
income from participating interests 570,442 1,155,737
7. Other interest receivable and similar income
2015 2014
£ £
Interest receivable on other loans 2,011,814 1,894,037
8. Interest payable and similar charges
2015 2014
£ £
Other interest payable and similar charges 3,642,388 3,807,457
9. Tax on loss on ordinary activities
Major components of tax income
2015 2014
£ £
Current tax
UK current tax income {330,752) (411,772)
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 11,581 50,348
Total current tax (319,171) (361,424)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities (319,171) (361,424)

-14 -



AM Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (contrnued)

Year Ended 31 December 2015

9.

10

Tax on loss on ordinary activities (continued) .
Reconciliation of tax Income

The tax assessed on the loss on ordinary activities for the year is lower than (2014 lower than) the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20 25% (2014 21 49%)

2015 2014

£ £
Loss on ordinary actvibies before taxalion (1,062,901) {760,371)
Loss on ordinary activities by rate of 1ax (215,237) (163,404)
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of prior periods 11,581 50,348
income not chargeable for tax purposes (115,515} {248,368)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities {319,171} (361,424)

Factors that may affect future tax income

On 26 October 2015, a reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 20% to 18% was substantively
enacted The reduction 15 to take effect in two stages from 1 April 2017 (19%) and then from 1 April
2020 (18%) In his Budget speech on 16 March 2016 the Chancellor of the Exchequer proposed
that the above UK corporation tax rate of 18% effective from 1 Aprl 2020 be further reduced to
17% The companys tax losses as at 31 December 2015 amount to £2,086,106 (2014
£2,086,106) The resultant deferred tax asset of £375499 (2014 £417,221) has not been
recognised due to uncertainties as to the extent and timing of s future recovery

Investments
Shares In Loans to
participating  participating
nterests interests Total
£ £ £
Cost
At 1 January 2015 54,251,748 11,811,110 66,062,858
Disposals - (183,046) {183,046)
At 31 December 2015 54,251,748 11,628,064 65,879,812
Impairment
At 1 Jan 2015 and 31 Dec 2015 - - -
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015 54,251,748 11,628,064 65,879,812
At 31 December 2014 54,251,748 11,811,110 66,062,858

-15.




AM Holdco Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Year Ended 31 December 2015

10. Investments (continued)

The Company holds interests in the following companies The percentage of the equity held 1s
noted in the table befow

% held
Road Management Group Limited 41 66%
Road Management Services {Darnngton} Holdings Limited 25 00%
Key Health Services Holdings (Addenbrookes) Limited 50 00%

The Company holds loan notes in the following comparniies  These loan notes tall due tor payment
at regular intervals with the closing balance, rate of interest and last payment date noted in the

table below
Balance Rate of Matunity
31 Dec 2015 interest
Road Management Group Limited 4,803,967 12 00% 2022
Road Management Services
{Darnngton) Holdings Limited 3,196,860 10 00% 2036
Key Health Services Holdings
{Addenbrookes) Limited 3,627,236 11 25% 2037

The full list of companies in which the company has investments in is as follows

Investment
Holding Class of shares
%
Key Health Services (Addenbrockes) Limited 50 Ordinary
Key Health Services Holdings (Addenbrookes) Limited 50 Ordinary
Road Management Group Limited 42 Ordinary
Road Management Consolidated PLC Limited 42 Ordinary
Road Management Limited 42 Ordinary
Road Management Services (Gloucester) Limited 42 Ordinary
Road Management Services (Peterborough) Limited 42 Ordinary
Road Management Services {Darnngton) Holdings Limited 25 Ordinary
Road Management Services (Finance) PLC Limited 25 Ordinary
Road Management Services (Darnngton) Limited 25 Ordnary
11 Debtors
Debtors falling due within one year are as follows
2015 2014
€ £

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 3,948,310 3,662,819
Called up share capital not pad - 1
Prepayments and accrued income 7,461,451 5,978,196
Other debtors 232,824 228,740

11,642,585 9,869,756

The amounts owed by group undertakings relate to group tax relief

-16 -



AM Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Year Ended 31 December 2015

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014

£ £
Amcunts owed to group underakings 86,598,087 84,267,343
Accruals and deterred income 24,867 22,098

86,622,954 84,289,441

The Amounts owed to group undertakings include amounts owed to the Company's immediate
parent of £42,594,517 (2014 £43,906,161) which bears interest at 8 4% and 15 repayable upon
demand The amount of interest outstanding at the year end 15 £31,958,697 (2014 £28,324,266)
The amounts owed to group undertakings also compnse a non-interast bearnng loan totalling
£12,044,873 (2014 £12,036,916) which 1s repayable upon demand

Called up share capital
Issued, called up and fully paid

2015 2014
No No £

£
1

—
—t

Ordinary shares of £1 each 1
The company 1ssued one share upon Incorporation
Reserves

Retained earnings - This reserve records retained earnings and accumulated losses

Related party transactions

The company 1s wholly owned by BIIF Bidco Limited and has taken advantage of the exemption in
sechon 33 of FRS 102 'Related Panty Disclosures', that allows it not to disclose transachons with
wholly owned members cf a group

Controlling party

The immediate parent undertaking is BIIF Bidco Limrted

The intermediate parent undertaking i1s BIF Haldco Limited, which 1s the parent undertaking of the
smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements Copies of BIIF Holdco Lumited
consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the Company Secretary at Cannon Place,
78 Cannon Street, London, EC4N 6AF

The ulhmate parent and controlling party s BIIF LP  BIIF L P 1s owned by a number of investors

with no one investor hawving indwidual control The immedate parent company s BIIF Bidco
Limited

-17 -



AM Holdco Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Year Ended 31 December 2015

17.

Transition to FRS 102

This 1s the first year that the company has presented its results under FRS 102 The last financial
statements under previous UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 December 2014 The date of
transiion to FRS 102 was 1 January 2014 The changes in accounting polictes between UK GAAP
as previously reported and FRS 102 have resulted in no adjustment to loss for the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 and the total equity as at 1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014

-18 -
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BIIF Holdco Limited
Strategic Report

Yecar Ended 31 December 2015

The Directors presem ther strategic report of the Company ood the Group for the year ended 1) December 2015

Principal Objectives and Stratcgies

The principal activity of the Company was that of 4 holding company The principal acuvity of the Group was the provision,
operanon and muintenance of vartous asscis under the Private Finance Imuatsve (‘PF1’) and within reguluted renewable markers

Revicw of the Business

In December 2015 the Group refinanced one of its lending facilities o a new facility level of £533,507.000 Tins 14 spht inta two
facilies, Facdiy A wlhich 1s repayable i instalments, wib the final payment on 31 December 2025, snd Factluy B which
repayable wn instalments with (he final paymenton 31 December 2035. This 15 described in more detat in note 12

The resulis for the year are in hae with management’s current expectations and the firancial model prepared for cach of the Group's
mvestments

The Group transitoned from previous UK GAAP to FRS 102 as a1 1 January 2014 The accoumis for both years are presented under
FRS 102, 1he adjusiments to the prior year reported financial position and financual performance are geven sn nole 22

Future Developments

The Directors intend for the business to continue to hold s interests in the investments

Key Performance Indicators

Group performance 15 measured on the basis of cash lliows, hath for sharcholders and feaders  As wath all companies in this sector,
detailed cash Mow projeciions are prepared 10 demonstrate the ability of the business to service us debt Current projections
demonstrate that the busiaess can conunie 10 maniom 1s debt service cover ratios at the base case levels agreed with the Group's
lenders and will continue 1o pay retuens to sharcholders As such the Directors are satisficd that the Group's performance is i line
with forecast and, therefore, consider the going concern basis of preparation to be appropriae

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to o vanety of financial nishs that include Reaal Price Indices, interest rate nish and hgquidity nsh The Group
has 10 place measures 1o hnut the adverse effects of changes 1n these nishs The Group's objective is to maintain o balance between
conttnuny of funding and flexibility through the use of cash deposity and proceeds from investsient sums The Group also 1nvests
m cash deposits at floating rates.

Objectives and polictes
The Company's exposure 10 and management of interest rate nish, credit nish and hyuidaty nsh 1s detusled below

Interest rare risk
The Group's pelicy 1s 10 manage s cost of horrowings using (ixed raie debt

Credit risk
Credit nisk 1s the nish of financial lass to the Group 1f a customer, counterparty to o financial insirument or counterparty for facilny
managemuent services finls 1o meet their contractual obligatons

Credit sk 1s overseen by management, and anses mainly from

cash and cash equivalents,

denvattve finahcial instruments,

credit exposures 1o amounts due from outstanding receivables, and
other commutied transactions with counterparues,

The Group’s objective 15 to minimse credil nish to an accepiable level whitst not overly restiicting the Group's abiiny 1o generate

2



BIIF Holdco Limited
Strategic Report

Financial nsk management {continued)

revenue and profil. Iv s the Group's palicy to invest assets safely and profitubly Management monitors credit nsh.ctdsely and!
considers that i curreni policies in managing the exposure to eredit rish are appropriate

The Group's exposure 1o credi nish 15 nftucaced manly by the individual charactensties of 11s key customers or counterpartics  The
Group’s largest cretht exposures are to pubhic sector bodies and financial institulions, The amounts owed by the pubhe sector bodies
in the United Kingdom are considered to he a low credu nisk by the Group The counterparies for facelity management are with well-
established companies that operate several facility management contracts and the Group considers these companies unhkely to defaul
on their respective habihities (o the Group

In determining whether a financial asset 15 impassed due 10 credit or counterparty rishs, the Group takes account of

»  The fair value of the assed ot the statement of financial position date and, where applicable, Use lustore far value
of the asset;
In the case of recervables, the counterparty’s typical payment patterns, and
In the case of other counterparty's. the current contract performance and the fatest avarlable formanon on the
counterprarty’s credu worthuness

Liquidury rish
The pnncipal repaymenis of the bond are subject 10 vanations in the retall pnce index to which the boad 15 inked

Principal risks and uncertainties

The principal nsh feced by the Group is the future cost of difecycle expenditure Each project has a hfecycle profile which s regularly
reviewed and managed, o highbight and mitigate any potenuial adverse effects

On March 2016, the UK HM Treasury announced its Business Tax Road Map In pant this was a response 1o the OECD's final
reports on u base erosion and profit shfong *BEPS’ smmauve The document scis out certam changes which may impact BIIF
Hotdeo Group's underlying invesimeats As at this ime the draft legislation has rot been finalised and has not been enacted into
law t1s not posstble 1o determine wath certainty the 1mpact on the Group

Approved by the board on 24 SC—{'W Zm@md signed on is behatf by,

z?

Nigel Mddleton
Dircctor



BIIF Holdco Limited
Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and the oudied financiol statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015 .

Results and Dividends

The ret consohidated loss after tax and minority interests in the financial year was £10,834,000 (2014 loss £58.678,000) The result
for the year will be transferred to reserves

No dividends (2014 £ml) were paid by the company durmg the year
Financial risk management

See waformation provided n the Strategic Repon

Directors and their interests

The Durectors in office dunag the year and up 1o the date of this regort, shown on page 1, had no heneficial inerest in the Company
or'ils subsidianes

Disclosure of information to the auditers
So tar as each of the Dircetors 1s aware, there 5 no relevant information that has net been disclosed w the Company's nuditors and
cach of the Direclors belweves that all steps have been taben that ought to have been wwhen 10 make them aware of any relevam sudit

information and to cstablish that the Company s auditors have been made aware of that information

Independent Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution concerning thesr
reappointment will be proposed at the Annual Generol meeting

The Directors’ Report was approved by the huard on 23 September 2016 ond signed on is hehalf by |

1ze] Muddléion
Director

Registered nember 06704550



BIIF Holdco Limited
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report and Group Financial Siatements in accordance with appheable faw
and regulations

Company {aw requires the directors o prepare financial staiements {or each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and Unied Kingdom Accounting Standards (Unmited Kwngdom
Generally Acceepted Accounting Pracuce), mcluding Financial Reporung Standurd 102 The Financial Reporting Standard
Apphecable in the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102)

Under company law the directors must not approve the financel statements unless they are satisficd that they give o true and far
view of the state of affars of the Company and the profit or loss of the Company for that peniod In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required 1o

*  select suntable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. make Judgments and accounting esnmates that are reasonable and prudem,

. state whether applicable United Kingdom Accouniing Standards, including FRS 102 have heen foilowed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and expimned in the financial statements,

. nonaly ity sharcholders in wnning about the use of disclosure exempuons, o any, of FRS 102 used in the preparation of financial
statemems, and

. prepare the finuncial siatements on the going concern basis unfess it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue 10 business

The directors are responsible (or heeping adequate accounung records that are sufficient 1o show and explwn the Company's
vrunsacuons and disclose with reasonable aceuracy at any tme the linancial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsble for safeguarding ihe assets of the Company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detecunn of fraud and other irregulanities

In so fur as the directors are aware®
. there 1s no relevant audit irformation of which the Company’s auditors ane unaware, and

. the directors have tahea all steps that they ought 1o have taken to make themselves aware of any retevant audst infarmation
and 10 establish that the audiors are aware of that information

The Directors’ responsthlities were approved by the board on A, September 2016 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Nigel Muddlclon
Dirceior .,

g
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BIIF Holdco Limited “
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of BIIF Holdco Limited

Report on the financial statements .

Our opinion
In our opinion, BIF Holdeo Limitéd's group financial simements and company financial statements (the “financial statements™):

give a true and fair view of the state of the group's and of the company's affairs as a1 31 December 2015 and of the group's
loss and cash flows for the year then ended,

have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuce, and

have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

What we have audited
The finoncial statements, ncluded within the Annual Report, compnse
the Group and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015;
the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;
the Group Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended,
the Group and Company Siatements of Changes 1n Equity for the year then ended:; and

the ngtes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting polu:nes and other explanaiory
information

The financiat reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financeat statements 1s United Kingdom
Accouning Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financiat Reporting Standard applicable 1o the UK and Republic of Ireland”
tUnued Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), and applicable law

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example 1n respect
of sigmificant accounting estimates In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and cossidered future events

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the informaton given in the Strategic Reporl zmd the Directors’ chon for the financeal year for which the
financial stalements are prepared is consistent with the financial siatements

_Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Aci 2006 we are required to report 1o you 1f. m our opinion
we have not recelved all the mformation and explanations we require for our aud, or

adequate nccounung records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audn have not been rccelvcd
from branches not visited by us, or

the company financial statements are not 1n agreement with the accounting records and retums

We have no exceplions 10 repon arising from this respoasibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required (0 report to you if, mn our opinton, certain disclosures of directors' remuncration
specified by law are not made We have no exceptions 1o repon arising from this responsibility.



BITF Holdco Limited
Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of BIIF Holdco lelted
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

s e T Cgs —

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set oul on page 5, the directors are responsible for the
preparaton of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.  * .

Our responsibility 15 1o audit and express an opimon on the financial statements  accordance with applicable law and l
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland) (“1SAs (UK & Ireland)”) Those standards require us to comply with the
Audiung Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors .

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Pant 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, 1n giving these opinions, accepl or assume
responsibihty for any other purpose or 1o any other person to whom this report 18 shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in wniting.

" What an audit of financial smiements involves

We conducted our audit 1n accordance with ISAs (UK & Ireland) An auditinvolves obtuning evidence about the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements sufficiént to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or ervor. This includes an assessment of

whether the accounting policies are approprate 1o the group’s and the company's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed,

»
»

the reasonablencss of sngniiicunl accounting estimates made by the directors; and
the overalt presentation of the financial statements

We pnmanly focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors’ judgements against nvmlnbh. evidence, formming our own
Judgements, and evaluating the disclosures n the financial statements

We test and examine wformaton, using sampling and other nudmng techmgues, to the extent we consider necessary (o provide o
reasonable basis for us 10 draw conclusions. We obiain audt ewdence through testing the effectiveness of controls. substantive
procedures or & combination of both

[n addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to 1dennfy matenal inconsistencies with
the audited financial statements and to identf; y any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or matenally
mconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us 1n the course ol; perfornung the audis if we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or winconsistencies we consider the implicarions for our report.

Cuflis Kb |

Caroline Roxburgh (S¢hior Statutory Aedrnior}.
for and on behatf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chantered Accountants and Stalutory Auditors
Edinburgh

24 September 2016

T



BIIF Holdco Limited

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Year ended 31 Dec 2015 Year ended 3 Dec 2014
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Group turnover 2 323,632 354,826
Cast of sales (226,744) (262,320)
Group gross profit 496,888 92,506
Net operating expenses (38,131) (4 1,494)
Group operating profit 58,757 51012
1
Finance costs . 9
- Group (108,022) (91,724)
Fair value profit(loss) on derivabhives 6,381 {6,669}
(101,641) (V8,39%)
Share of results in joint ventures and ossocintes 8 29,430 8,334
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation 4 {13, 454) (39.047)
Tax on profi/(loss) on ordinary nctvities 5 1477 (16,108)
Loss on ordinary activities after taxation (5977 (55.155)
Non-controlling interesis ’ {4,857) (3,523
Loss for the finoncial year (10.834) {58.678)
Other comprehensive income
Fair vaiue movements on cash MMow hedging instruments, nel
of tax
- Group 12,399 (68,991)
- Associates and jont ventures ) 23,049 (40,207)
35,448 (109,198)
Non-controlling interests 508 (4849)
Exchange differences on retranstation of subsidiary 139 {506)
undertakings
Tax relauing to components of other comprehensive income 83 {421)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 25344 {169,292)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ,
attributable to:
Non-comralling interests {4,349) (4.012}
Ownurs of the parent company . 29,693 {165,280}

25,344 (169.292)

oy

’




BIIF Holdco Limited

Group and Company Statement of Financial Position

For the yeur ended 31 December 2015

Fixed assets
Tangible assels
Investment properties

Investments

Imierests 1 joml veotures.
Share of gross assels
Share of gross liahilitics

Assacidles
Interest in associakes

Current assets

Debtors: due withsn one year

Debtors due after more than one year,
Cash in hand and a1 bank

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Nel current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year

Derivative financial instruments

Provision for habilities ond charges
Deferred taxation

Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Called up share capial
Huedging reserve
Other reserves

Profit and loss account

Total shareholders’ deficit

Non-controtling interests

Note

e |

Group Group Company énmpany
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
£600 £000 £000 £000
389,120 411,829 - .
63,954 61,954 - .
1,762,634 1,749,136 - 4
(1,519,252) (1,543,065 . J
86,038 8.5 - -
329.420 287,887 - -
782,494 763,670 - -
137,621 138,166 ; ]
1,426,713 1,494,996 - -
220,602 222,746 - -
1,784,936 1,855,908 - -
(320,534) (334,904) - )
1,464,402 1.521.004 - -
2,246,896 2,284,674 - -
(2,114,635) (2,157,574) - .
(525459) (559,506) - -
(68,509) (58,995) - .
{461,708) (491,401) - -
“(343,246) (379.20%)

2,191 2,052 - -
(157,307) {146,356) - -
(498,362) (523,707) - -

36,654 32,306 - -
(461,708) (491,401) A -

These financial statements on pages 8 1o 39 were approved by the Directors and authonsed for 1ssuc on 29, Sceptember 2016 and

are signed on its hehaff by

Nigel Middleton
Director
Campany registrafion number 06704550
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Nete
Net cash from operating activities 16
Taxation received
Net eash generated from operating activities

Investing activities

Interest received

Dividends received

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Disposal of tangible fixed assets

Net cash generoted from investing activitics

Financing activities

Interest pard

Issue costs of new bank facility

Receipts of new banking fucilities

Net decrease i bank borrowings and other loans
Capital repayments of loan amounts 1ssued to joint
ventures and ussociales

Loans advanced to joint ventures znd assodiates
Net movement in Joan amounts due from project
compantws 1n the Group under sub parucipation agreement
fram the hanh

Net cash used in financing activities

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of cxchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivolents at 31 December

Year ended
31 Dec 2015

£000
121,045
(1,037)
120008
69,556

19,640

(161

" 89,035
(169,060)
(17,020)
575,508
(609,710)
2431
(11,010)
18,028
(210,833)

(1,790)
(354)

222,746

220,662

Ycar ended
31 Dec 2014

£000
118,562

2318

120,880

80,808
10,026
(237
2,979

93,556

(161,039)
(4.709)
32919
(364,98Y)

5451
(930)

11,227

(202,070)
12,366

210.380
222,746



BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Accounting policics

PR
A summary of the principal Group Accounting Policies, all of which have been applicd consisiently throughout the year,
15 set out below )

Statement of compliance

BIIF Holdco Limied 1s a limited hability company incorporated n England The Registered Office 1s Cannon Place, 78
Cannon Street Londoa ECAN 6AF

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in compliance with FRS 102 as ot applics to the financial stalements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015

The Group transitoned from previously extant UK GAAP o FRS 102 as at | January 2014 An explanation of how
trensition to FRS 102 has affected the reported financul posiion and fingnciat performance 15 gaven wn note 22

b
Basis of preparation

The financial statemenis have been prepared under the histonical cost convention, ¢s modified by the revafuation of cortain
financial instruments and in accordance wih Compamies Act 2006 and applicable Accounting Standards in the United
Kingdom The financeal statemems are prepared in sterling which 15 the functional currency of the Group and rounded 1o
the nearest 1000

Going concern

The Group has recerved loans from external banks, which are secured agamst the cash Rows frem the Group's invesiments
and also loans from s ultimate parent undertaking The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
following an assessment of the financial viabiliy of each of the Group's principal investments, and also the sources of cash
flow projected 1o be availuble ta service the portfolie debi obligations within the Group  This assessment indicates that
although the Group currently has ret habthines, sufficicnt funds will be generated to altow ongoing ohligaions 1o be met as
they fall due

The Directors have tahen advantage of the exemption avinbable under sechion 408 of the Compamies Act 2006 and have nol
prepared a statement of comprehensive income for BITF Holdco Limited

Method of consolidation - subsidiaries

On acquisition of a husiness, all the business” assets and habilines that exist al the date of acquisiion are recorded at theie
far values Insually, provisional fasr values are allocated and these are finnhised within twelve months of the date of coniral
All changues 1o those assets and lishihiies and resuling guins and losses that arise after the Group has gmned control of the
subvdiary are charged to the post acquisition stulement of comprehensive income  The purchase consideration is measured
as the farr value of the assets given up or habiities undeniahen plus costs directly atrbutable 1o the acquistion Goodwalt
15 the excess purchase consideranion over the fair value of the identifiable assets and lamliees acquired.

Subsidiaries arc enterpnses that are controlled by the Group over which it typically has 1n excess of 50% of the voung
nghty  The Group consolidaies the results of the company and us subsidiries  Subsihary acquisitions are accounted for
using the acquision method of accounting Al inter-group transactions, balances ond unreahsed gains on transactions
between Group entitees have been ¢hminated in full h

Fair value adjustments which are made a1 the date of acquisition are amortised on a strmghy hine basis over the period of
the life of the undertying asset

Uniform accounting pohcies are applied across all subsiduiries within the Group

W
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Accounting policies (continued)
Method of consolidation - associates and joint ventures

Invesiments 1n associates ond joint ventures are consolidated using the equity method In arnving at the amounts W be
included by the equity method, the same accounting policies as those of BIF Holdco Limited are appfied  Where
practeicable, associates and joint ventures are included on the bass of financial statemenis prepared for a penod noet more
than three months before the Group's year end. Where the assotiate’s or joini venture’s accounting reference date 1s greater
than three months prior Lo 3 December, the associates are consoltdated based on the baest statuiery accounts adjusied for
management accounts to 31 Decomber.

Associates are enterprises, other than joint ventures, that are rot controlied by the Group, over which the Group generally
has between 20% and 50% of the voung righis, or aver which the Group has sigmficon influence

All batances and effects ol transactions between edch associate and juint venture and vhe Group have been ehimenated 10
the extent of the Group's interest 1n the associate and jormt venture

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financia) statements reguires management to make judgements, esiimates and assumptions that
affect the amounis reported  These esumates and Judgements are conunuolly reviewed and are based on expertence and
other factors, inctuding expectanons of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumsiances

Significant judgements .

The yudgements (apart from those involving estimations) that management has made in the process of applying the entuy's
accounaing pohcwes and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as
follows.

i) Hedge accounting and considerantion of the fair value of derivative financial instruments

The Group uses denivanve linancial instruments to hedge certain economie exposurcs in relation lo movements in nferest
rages and movements in RPI as compared with the position that was expected at the date the underlying Iransaction being
hedged was entered mto The Group fair values its denvative financial anstruments and records the fair value of those
instruments on s statement of Hinancial posiion

Movements in the fuar values of the Group's derivauve financial instruments may be accounted for using hedge accounung
where 1he requirements of hedge accounting are met under FRS 102 sncluding the creation of compliant documentation
and mecting the effectiveness testing requirements 17 a hedge does not meet the critena for hedge accounting, which may
includc a consideration of whether there has been a substantial modification 1o the terms of the hedpe, or where there ss
some degree of ineffectiveness wWennbfied i respeet of the hedging relationship, then the change in faur value in retation to
these nems wiil be recorded in the comprehensive income statement 1§ a hedgng relauonship s judged 1o be discontinued
for hedge accounting then uny amounts previously deferred in other comprehensive income in respeet of that previously
hedged pasttion, must immediately be recognised in the incomie statement  Gtherwise, 1a respect of the Group's denvative
financial insiruments, these changes in i fair value are recogmised in other comprehensive mcome,

As referred (o above, the Group cames ns dervative financial instruments on ats statement of financial posuon ot fair
votue  No marhes prices are avinlable for these istruments and consequently the fmr volues are derived using finoneinl
models developed by the shurcholders based on counterparty snformatkion that 1s independent of the Group, but use
ahservable marketl data in respeet of RP] and interest rutes as an inpul (o valuing those derrvative financeal instruments

i} Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carries 11s investment property ai fair value, with changes 1a fur vatue being recogmised in profit or loss The
Group eagaged independent valuation specialists 1o determine fair value at 31 December 2015 (residenbal property) and
31 December 2013 (commercial property) The vatuer used a valuation techmique based on a discounted cash flow model
as there 15 a fuch of comparable market data because of the nature of the property The determined fair value of the
INVESIMUERL propertly 15 most sensitive to the estimated yield as well us the long term vacancy rate The hey assumptions
used to deternune the fair value of svesiment property are further explamed in note 7
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Accounting policies (continued)
5ii) Income taxation
Current taxation

: i A 5
The taxation charge or credit anising on profit or lossbefore taxation and rn respect of gains or losses recogmsed through
other comprehensive income reflect the tax rates 10 effect or subsiantially enacted at the balance sheet date as appropriate
The determination of appropnate provisions for taxation requires the Directors to tahe inlo dccount anncipated decisions
of HM Revenye and Customs which inevitably requires the Directors to use Judgements as to the approprate estimate of
X800 PTOVISIONY

Deferred 1axanion

Deferred taxanon is provided using the balance sheet habilny methed and s recognised on temporary differeaces between
the carrying umounts of assets and liabhities 1 the financial statements and the comesponding taxation buses used in the
computation of taxable profit  Judgements are required 1o be made as 1o the cafculation and enuficanon of wmporary
differences and in the case of the recogminion of deferred taxation assets, the Dircetors have 1o form an opinion as 10 whether
1t is probable that the deferred 1axanon assel recogrused 1s recoverable against fiture saxable profits ansing - This exercise
of Judgemem requires the Directors 1o consider forecast iformation over a long tme horizon having regard 1o the nshs
that the forecasts may nol be achieved and then form a reasonable opinion as o the recoverabiiny of the deferred 1axation
assel

Key sources of estunation uucertainty

Accounting esumates and assumpnions are made concermng the future and, by their nature, will rarely equal the relaed
actua] outcome The key assusnpions and other sources of estimation uncertaiy that have a significan nsh of cavsing a
material adjustiment to the carrying amounts of assets and [iabilines withen the next linancial year are as follows

B
i) Impairment of nssets
N

The carrying value of those asseis recorded on the Group's statement of financial position at amorused cost coukd be
matenally reduced (f the value of those assets were assessed to have been impatred Empairment reviews are performed in
the event that urcumstances change which sight sndicaie thay an asset has been impatred In principle, such impairmen
reviews consider the fair value and or value 1 use of the porentially impaired asset or assets and compares thar wath the
carrying value of the asset or assets on the statement of Ninancial positon Any reduction in value ansing from such o
review would be recorded mn the income statemenmt  Impairment reviews involve the sigmificant use of assumptions.
Consweration has to be given as to fhe pnee that could e obtained for the asser or assets, or in relation W a constderaiion
of value en use, esimates of the future cash Mlows that could be gencrated by the potenually impared asset or assets,
together with o constderation of un approprate discount rate o apply to those cash flows

ii)  ° Accounting far service concession agreements

Accounting for the service concession contracts and finance debtors requires estimation of service margins. finance debtor
mterest rates and associated amortisaton profiles which are based on Jorecast resulls of the contracts

Taxation
Taxawon expense for the period comprises current and delerred tax recogaised m the reporting percod  Tax is recognised
n the profit and loss account, except 1o the extent that u relates 1o iems recogmsed in other comprehensive income or

directly in equuy. In thes case ax w also necogmsed 1 other comprehensive income or directly i equay respectively

Current or deferred taxaton assets and habalities ane not discounted
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5. Taantion
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
£000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tox on profit/(foss) for the year 1,561 3,706
Adjustments in sespect of prior persods for subsidiary compames 2,219) 758
Tax an profit on ordinary nctivities (658) 4,464
Deferred tox
Onginaion and reversal of uming differences (3,630) $E 100
Impact of change i 1ax rafe (3,189) 544
Totat deferred tax credn {6,81%) 11,644
Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities (1,477) 16,108

The tax assessed for the year 15 lower than (2014 lower than) the standard rate applying m the UK (20 25%) (2014
21 49%)} The diferences are explained below
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014

£000 £000
Group profit/(toss) on ordinary activittes before tux {13,454) {39.047)
Profit/{Loss) on ordinary activinies a the UK 1ax rate 20 25% (2014 21 49%) 2,729) (8.391)
Eflects of:
Expenses not deducuhle Tor tax purposes 152 18,550
Losses utshised (3,760) -
Adjustment in respeet of prior year tax charge (2,219 758
Naon-trading transfer pricing adjustment 5,147 5,122
Group rehef not pad for ) (884) (485)
Effect of rate change {3,189) 554
Tax on profit/({oss) on ordinary activities (7,477} {16,108

Factors that may affect futute tax income

On 26 Qctober 2045, a reducuon in the UK corporauen tax rate from 20% to 18% was substannvely enacted The reduction
15 1o tithe effect in two stages from | April 2017 (19%) and then from | April 2020 (18%) As a result. retevant deferred
tax baliances have been re-measured an the rate at which the majority of the deferred tax balance 15 expected to unwind

In tus budget speech on [6 March 2016 the Chancellor of the Exchequer proposed that the above UK corporation 1ax rate
of [8% effecuive from | Apri) 2020 be reduced 10 17% This change has not been substanuvety enacted at the halance sheet
date and therefore 1s nat recogrused 1n these financiat siatements

6 Results of kolding company
A Company profit of £mil (2014 E£mil) 1s dealt with by the parent accounts of BIIF Holdco Limued The Directors have

tahen advantapge of the cxemption avaitable under section 408 of the Companics Act 2006 and have not presented a
statement of comprehensive income for the Company alene.

~ -
&
A



BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
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7 Tangible fixed assets - Group
Buldings Equipment Total
E0DD 080 £000

Cost or valuation
As at | January 2015 435.371 125,887 561,258
Addions - 16} 161
Foreign exchange translation adjustment - (2,145) (2,145)
As at 31 December 2015 435,371 123,903 559,274
Depreciation
As o lJanuary 2015 106.674 42,755 149,429
Charge for the period 15,070 . 5,655 20,725
As ot 31 December 2015 121,744 48,410 170,154
Net book value
As at 31 December 2015 313,627 75,493 389,120

As ol 31 December 2014 328,697 813,132 411,829
Inerest charged to the mcome statement included within the depreciasion charge 15 £555,000 (2014. £1,050,000)
Interest camtalised to date, inchuded m cost, totabs £24,943.000 (2014 £25,498,000)

Included within the total Tor Equipment 1 £2,139,000 (2014 £5,521,000) in respueet of assets held under finance Jease

Company
The Company had no fixed ussets at 31 December 2015 (2014: none)
Land &
Investment properties - Group Buildings
£0600
Cost or valuation
Ay ot | January 2015 . 63,954
Revaluation .
As at 31 December 2015 63,954

The Group holds residentral and commercial investment propertivs

The residentiab investment propertivs were revatued on an open market basis in March 2015 by Derch Nestitt a member
of the Royal Instiiuuon of Chariered Surveyors on behalf of DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limied

The commercial investment property was revalucd by Rushton International on the basis of market value 2t 31 December
2013 The Directors consider that the valuaiion carmed outin December 2013 connnues to reffect the curreat marker value

Compaony
The Company had no invesiment properuies at 31 December 2015 (2014: none)

20
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Accounting policies (continued)
i} Current tax

Current wax is the amount of income 1ax payable in respect of the 1axable profit for the year or priar years Tax 15 calculeted
on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacied or substantively enacted by the penod end Muanagement
penodically evaluates positons taken in tax returns with respect (o situations 1 which applicable 1ax regulation is subjet
10 mterprefation § esigblishes provisions where appropriate on the bases of amounts expected (o be pard (o the tax
authontwes

it} Deferred tax .

Deferred tax anses from nming differences that are chfferences between taxable profils and totad comprehensive income as
stated 1 the financra! staterments These tumng differences anse from the inclusion of wncome and expenses 1 tux’
assessments in pentads different from those m which they are recogmsed i financial staements

Deferred tax s recognised on all uoing differences at the repornng date except for certamn excephions Unrelieved Lax Josses
and other deferred tax assets are only recogmsed when s probable that they will be recovered aganst the reversal of
deferred tax habiies or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax 1s measured using Wax rates and faws that have been enacted or substantevely enucted by the penod end and
that are expected 1o apply to the reversal of the uming differeace

Tuarnover

Al
Turnover represents the services share of the management services income recerved by the Group for the provision of a
PF asset 1o the cusiomer. This income s received over the hie of the concession penicd Management service incoms 15
allecated between revenue and reimbursement of Ninance deblor so as to gencrate a constant rate of return wn respect of the
finance debtor over the bife of the contract

lnterest income -

Interest incoms 1s recogmised as interest acerues using the effective mterest method
Dividends

Duvidends are recognised as income when the Group's right to seceive payment 1s established

Foreign currencics

Each enty in ithe Group determines 1ts own funciional currency and tems included 10 the financial staements of cach
entity are measured using that functeonal currency The assets and habihities of overscas subsidiary yndertobngs are
translated nto the presentationa) currency ot the rate of exchiunge ruling at the statemen of financia) position date  Income
and expenses for cach siptement of compreheasive income are translated at exchange rates al the dates of ransaction All
resulung exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income

Accounting for PF1 asscts

The Group has taken the transition exemption in FRS 102 Sccuon 35 10(i) that allows the Group 1o continue the service
concession arangement accounuing pohicies from old UK GAAP

i Finance debtor
The company 1s accouniing for the concession asset based on the ability to substannally transfur afl the nshs and rewards

of ownership 1o the customer, with s arrangement the costs incurred by the company on the design and construcuon of
the assets have been treated os a findnce debtor within these financral statements
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,  Accounting policies (continued)
ii. Tongible fircd assets

Fhe company 15 accounung for the concession asset based on the inabahty to substantally wansfer all the ks and rewards
of ownership 1o the eustomer, with this arrangement the costs tncurred by the company on the design and construchion of
the wsseis have been reated as a fixed asset wilhin these financial statements

iit. Investment properhies

Investment propertics are accounted for m sccordance winly FRS 102 Sccuion (6 ‘Investment Property' Investment

propurties are revalued every Iwo o three yedrs by an external qualified and registered property valuer and every other year
3 e Directors assess the carrymg value in hght of any changes 10 market conditions The aggregate surplus or deficit 1

charged 10 the mcome statement, and no amortisation s provided in respect of tong leaschold investment propertics

Depreciation

v

On completion {(date on which an avatlahity certificate 1s issued), depreciation s charged on buldings on a strmght line
basis 1o the income statement over the uselul economie hife of each assel The annual rates applied to cach class of asset

are
Buildings concession penod 235 1o 35 years - 2 9% 10 4 0% sinught hine
Equpment - concession penod 25 10 29 years sirmght line
short ite assels 3-4 years strarght hne and 12 5% ~ 33% reducing balance
Impairment

All assets, including financial assets, are reviewed for imparment ennually at the reporting date Where an sndrcator of
imparrment or objective evideace exists, an esimiate of the assel’s recoverable amount 1s made An impairment loss 15
recogmsed in the income statement for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 11s recoverable amount

Recoverable amount s the higher of an asser’s faar value less costs to sell and valuc 1a vse For the purposes of assessing
tmpairment, assels are prouped al the lowest levels for which there are separotely sdentifiable cash inflows that are largely
indvpendent of the cash inflows from other assets  This as at the individual progect company kevel within the Group

Gavernment grants

Grants which relate to specific capital expenditure are accounted for using the accrual modef These are imually treawed as
deferred income and subsequently released (o the income statement on a strmght hine basis over the asset's useful ecoromic
Iife Qther grants are recognised in the sncome stalement when any associsted performuance condmons are met

Deferred income

Deferred income also includes cipital comrthutions towards the construction of fixed assets from the public sector
counterparty on ceriain projects compleied by the Group These are accounted for using the actrual model and released 10
the income stytement on 3 straight hine basis over the hiv of the related asset

Capital instruments

Shares are included 1n sharcholder funds Debt instruments, which contan an obligation to repay, are classified as habihines
The finance costs recognised tn the income statement m respect of capital struments, other than shares, are allocated to
puriads over the operating Wfe of the instrument 10 which they relate at a constant carrying amount in accordunce with FRS
102 secthion 22
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8 Investments - Group
Interests in joint ventures and associates
- Loans te N
Joint Joint Laans to
venlures Associntes ventures associntes Total
£000 E000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuntion
Axs at | January 2015 65,973 57,676 140,330 23,908 287,887
Addiuons 2 < 11,010 128 L1.t38
Disposats - e (an - (th
Share of retuined profits 22,057 7373 - - 29,430
Chavidends recervable (14,529) {5.111) " o (19,640)
Movement on hedge reserve 20,740 2,309 - - 23,049
Repayment of loan - . (2.188) (245) (2.433)
As at 31 December 2015 94,241 62,247 149,141 23,791 329,420
Company

The Company had no investments a1 31 December 2015 (2014 none)

The following additional 1aformution is provided in respect of equity sccounted investments

Sharc of Share of Shareof Share of
Share of non-current  current non-current  current  Shareof

Revenue assels assets ligbilities linbilittes net assets
£040 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
31 December 2015
Joi vemures 156,867 1495504 267,132 1,422,200 97052 243,382
Associales 55,159 333,589 88,228 292,597 43,151 86,038
31 December 2014
Joint ventures 214,388 1,502,724 246,644 1,450,153 42,912 206,301
Associales 54,132 348,941 86,612 312,949 41,020 B1.584

lnvestments tn Group undertakings are stated a1 cost - The Directors consider that 1o give fult particulars of all subsidianes
would lead 1o a stalement of excessive length
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8 Investments (continucd)
The companies histed below are subsidianies of the Group -

Tnvestment
A-Roads Investments Lennited

ABC Schools (Holdsngs) Linsted
AHC Schools Limited
Adams Campus Linuted

Alnt Connnurications Group Holdings Linuted
Alunt Commpnicanions (Haldings) Lintted

Alent Commumcations (20061 Limited
Alert Commurications Lomited
Alpha Schoals (West Lomhian) Holdmgs Limiled

Alpha Schools (Wesi Lothian) Linnted
AM Holdeo Lanntud

Anason Holdings Limiwed
Anavon Liouted

Bannochbum Group Limited
Honnochbum Holdings Limited,_

Hannochhum Homes Linnted
Barclays Integrated Infrastructun Project sasl

Rtack Hill Wind Farm Topeo Limied
Black Hill Wind Fann Holdeo Limiled
Black Hil Wind Farm Linoed

BIIF Budeo Linnted

Blackshaw Healthcare Scrvices Holdings Limeted
Blackshaw Hialtheare Scrvices Lid

BUF Holdeo I Lumted

HUF Hohkco 1N Linnted

BUF fsxuerCo Linnted

BIIF Offshan. Windkrmft Holdings Limuied
BIIF Parenico Limited

Carchment Highland Holdings Limted
Catchnwn1 Highland Linuted

Catchieny Lamitd

Catchiment Moy Holdings Linuied

Catchmem Moray Linuted
Catchnwn Tay Holdings Linuited

Carchment Tay Linuled

CH Ruolioa Lumsted

CH Holien {Holdjngs) Lsndied
Connect AS0 Lainisted !
Cannect Roads Lanuted

Covesea Haldings Laimited

Covesea Lamuted

Crichetdnfl Liguted '

Delence Managsment Group (Holdings) Linoted

Defence Managunwent (Holdings) Linueed

Drfenc. Managenent (Walchficld) Liunacd

Duchesspark Heldings Lumited

22

Registered office

Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sireer London EC4N 6AF
2nd Floor, § ] Thistle Strect, Edinburgh, EH2 1DF
3ad Floar, 1 Thisde Street, Edinburgh, EH2 1DF
Cannon Place 8 Connon Sireet London, ECAN 6AF
13 Wigmeore Sinul London WIU 1QX

Amokds Cottage, Eddy Greon Road, Lyrehett datravers, Poole,
Darset, BH16 6HL
33 Wignwre Sinel, London WU 1QX

11 Wigmone Sicet London WU 1QX

2nd Floor, ] Thistle Street Edinburgh EH2 1DF
2ad Floor, |} Thistle Streed Edinburgh. EH2 IDF
Cannen Place, 78 Cannon Streel London ECAN AL
Cannon Place 78 Cannan Sirves, London, ECIN 6AF
Cannon Ploce 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AF
2ad Floor, 1§ Thistle Strves, Edinburgh, EH2 §DF
Ind Roor, 11 Tltlsllc Street, Edinburgh, EH2 | DF

2ud Floor, H Thistl Strecet Edinbirgh, EH2 |DF
16 Palace Sireqt Londen SWIE SID

Heaufort Caun Egp Fann Lane, Off Station Road  Kings Langley,
Henfordstire, WD LR

Beaufont Coun Egg Farm Lane, Off Stabon Road, Kings Langley,
Henfordshire, \WD4 2LR

Beaufort Coun Egg Farw Lanc, Off Statson Road, Kings Langley
Henfordshire, WD SLR

Fifth Floor 100 Wood Sireet Londan EC2V TEX

Cannnn Plzee 78 Cannon S, London ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Strect London ECYN 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sireet London, ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannoa Sincet, London, ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Connoa Street, London, ECAN 6AF
477 Esplanade, St Holier Jersuy, JEI ODE

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Strect London ECAN 6AF
Ind Floor 11 Thistle Sirvet, Edinburgh EH2 IDF
2md Floor, 11 Thistle Sirect Edinhurgh, EH2 1BF
2nd Foor 11 Thasily Strees Edinburgh, EX2 1DF
Ind Aoor. 11 Thstle Stineet. Edinburgh, EH2 LDF
Ind Floor 11 Thisile Stnext, Edinburgh, EH2 IDF
2nd Floor 11 Thistle Street, Edinburgh, EH2 1DF
2nd Hoor, 11 Thsile Stneet Edinburgh, EH2 1DF
Cannost Place, 78 Cannon Staevd, London, ECAN GAF
Cannron Place, 78 Cannon Street, London ECIN 6AF
Gth Floor 150 Euston Road, Regents Place, Londun NWIIAX
6th Floor 350 Euston Road Regenis Place, London, NWI 3AX
2ad Floor 11 Thistle Suvet Edinburgh EH2 1DF
2nd Floor §1 Thistle Street, Edinburgh EH2 |DF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Streer Lendon LCIN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sizevt, London, ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street Losden, ECIN 6AF

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sinvt London ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Steet Loadun ECAN 6AF
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{nvestmem

Duchesspark Lamaied

Dutafnes Facibises (Holdings) Litined
Dumines Facihzes L1

Ducham Ins estnients Holdeo Limited
Eastbrook Facities Hollings 2 Limited
Easthrook Faciiis Haldings Limited
Easthrouk Facilities Lunited

Eibon Huldings (£) Lannted

Libun Haldmgs (2) Limned

Elbon Holdmgs (3) Lainutd

Elbon PFI Fund I

Elbon PF1 Fund {Investmenis) Linwtedt
Elgin Water Lintiied

ER1 Hotthngs Linuted

Forfar Healthcore (Holdings) Linsted
Forfar Healthear Lamited

Grannag Lanuted

GH Bodnun Holdings Liinted

GH Bodnnn Limiied

GH Bury Holdings Limited

GH Bury Lamited

GH MNewham Holdings Limivd

GH Newham Limited

HSC [nvesiments Luited

Luton Health Faciftaes (Hokhngs) Limsted
Luton Health Facibtes Liited

HpC King's College Hospital (Hotdmgs) Lemuted
HpC King s College Haspual (Issuen) ple
HpC King s College Hospual Limsted

12 thilco Limuted

12 Holdco 2 Linnted

12 Holdeo Lanmted

Infrastructuse Investors Castichill Hotdings Linutud
Infrastructun: Investors Castlubnll Linnted
Infrastructune tnsestors Generat Partner LLP - dormant
tnfrastructut tnsestors Linnied - dortnam
Infrastruciure Managers Litnied

Innosate East Lothian (Holdings) Laniied
tonotate East Lothidn Licrted
Intermanienal Water (Hnghhmdi Limuied
inteenational Water (Toy) Linsiied
Internationat Water UU (Hightand) Limited
Investment Holdings (Gemasties) Linuicd
IWL Muray Manirose Linuted

IWUUHH Limited

KE Project Lunted

Kilmamaock PFI Holdings Limsted
Kilmamech Pnson Services Limited
Kinnuull House Holdings Lyonted
Kinnoull Hoase Laimited

Kintra Limed

Lantemduw Lamited

LH Progect Linuted

Regislered olfice

Canron Place, 78 Cannan Streve London, ECIN 6AF
2ad Floor, {1 Thasue Sireet, Edinburgh, EH2 1DE
a4 Floos, |} Thistlke Streey, Edinburgh EH2 1DF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sircet, London ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place. 78 Cannon Sirec 1, Landon ECIN 6AF
Cannon Placy, 78 Cannon Sireet, London ECIN 6AF

Cannon Placc, 78 Cannon Sircet London, ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannen Sireet London, EC4N 6AL

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sinnet, Londun, ECAN 6AF
Cannan Place, 78 Carnon Sieet London, ECAN 6AF
2o0d Finer 1V Thisde Street: Edinburgh EH2 IDF
Cannon Place 78 Cannan Strewt, London, ECHN 6AT
Ind Ruar 11 Thsile Steer Edinhurgh EH2 IDF
Cannon PMace, 78 Cannon Street London ECAN GAF
2nd Floor 1 Thistle Sineed kdinburgh EH2 IDF
3nd Floor, 11 Thistle Street, Edinburgh EH2 IDF
Cannan Place 78 Cannon Stneet, London, ECAN bAF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Stneut London ECYN 6AF
Cannon Pince 78 Cannon Strect, London, ECAN 6AF
Cannan Place 78 Cannon Sieet London RGN 6AF
Cannun Place, 78 Cannon Strect Londen EC4N 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannan Street London, ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Strevt Lendon, ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannun Street Londan, ECAN 6AF
Canien Place 78 Cangen Street, London EC4N 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cattnon Siree: London ECIN 6AF
Cannon Fiace T8 Cannon Sincut London ECEN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannron Sircet London, ECSN 6AF
Cannon Place. 78 Cannun Street London, EC4N GAF
Cannron Place 78 Cannon Sireet London, ECAN 6AF
Cannun Place, 78 Cannon Sineet, London, ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sireet London EC4N 6AF
Caonnon Pince, 78 Cannon Swreer, London, ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place. 78 Cannon Sireet, London, ECAN 6AF
Hill Huuse | Lanle New Steeet, Lontdon ECHA TR
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street London EC4N 6AF
2l Foor |1 Thstle Street, Edinhurgh EH2 IDF
2nd Floor. 1 | Thistle Strevt, Edinburgh, EH2 (DF
2nd Rloor 11 Thistle Steet Edinbucgh EH2 1DF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Strect London EC4N 6AF
Cannan Place, 78 Cornon Street London ECAN 6AT
1nd Floor 11 Thistle Sucet Edinburgh EH2 (DF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London, EC4N 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sirve! London, ECIN 6AF
Cannan Place, 78 Cannon Sircet, Londan, ECAN 6Ak
2nd Flpor 1) Thisthe Sircet, bdmburgh EH2 1DF
Cannon Place, 78 Cammon Siecet, Londun, ECN 6AF
Cannon Plaee, 78 Cannon Sireet London, EC4N 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sireet London EC4N 6AF
2nd Floor, |} Thistle Street Edinburgh. EH2 1DF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street, London, ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street, London, ECIN 6AF
2nd Floer 11 Thustle Street Edinburgh EH2 IDF
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Imyestment Regisicred ofTice

Lochgilphwad Healtheare Services (Holdings) Limeted 2nd Floar, 11 Thestle Street Edinburgh EH2 {DF
Lochgriptwad Heatihcan: Services Limnted 2nd Floor 11 Thistle Stnet, Edinburgh EH2 1DF
Lowdham Grsage Prison Sunvices Limisted Cannon Place, 78 Cannen Sireet, Lomdon ECYN 6AF
AMt-Al Invesinwents Limited Canron Place 78 Cannon Strect, Loadon, ECAN 6AF
MI-Al Yorkshire Linnted Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sinvet London ECAN 6AF
Machne Bum Linuted Cannen Place 78 Cannon Street, London, ECAN 6AF
Muochne Linnted Connon Place 78 Cannon Sireet London, ECIN 6AF
Magnx FPMS Holdings Locuied Cannan Place 78 Cannun Sirecr, Londen ECIN 6AF
Mainx FPMS Lamied Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street, London, ECIN bAF
Matnx PF1 Desclopments Linited Cannan Place, 78 Cannon Street Landon EC4N 6AF
Mamnx PPl GP Limed Cannon Place 78 Cannvn Sireet Landon ECAN 6AF
Matns PFl Holdings Limiled Cannon Plzee 78 Cannen Sireet London EC4N 6AF
Matrix Promicr Holdings Litked . Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sireet London, EC4N 6AF
Mudlothian Schools {Debico) Linnted 2nd Floor, ) Thusike Street, Edinburgh EH2 IDF
Mhdtothian Schoels {(Holdings) Linnted 2nd Floor, 11 Thistle Streed, Edinburgh, EH2 1DF
Mdlothian Schools Lisited 2nd Ruor, 11 Thistle Stieetl Edsabusgh, EH2 (DF
Marcton Prisen Scrvices Limited Cannon Place 78 Cannan Stecdt London ECIN 6AF
Moms Eddie Limied 2nd Roor 1] Thisile Sireet Edinburgh, EH2 [ DF
Newmoun Holdings Limiled Cannun Place, 78 Cannon Sereet London ECIN 6AF
Newnsount Lrmited Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London ECAN 6AF
Newschools (Peaweddig) Holdings Linuted Cannan Place 78 Cannon Street London, EC4N 6AF
Newschools (Penweddigy Linned Cannon Place 78 Cannon Streel Londun, ECIN 6AF
Normwnby Healthean: Group Holdings Limtied Cannon Placc 78 Cannon Strecs Londdon EC4AN 6AF -
Normanhy Hualthean: (Holdings) Linuted Cannon Place, 78 Cannoa Street, London, ECAN 6AT
Normanby Healthcan: (Projecis) Linuted Cannun Place, 78 Cannon Street, London ECAN 6AF
NPFI Secunty (Aog 2010} Limated Cannon Place 78 Cannon Stnxt, London EC4N 6AF
Nufficld Allion Healthcane Linnted Cannon Place 78 Cannan Stnct London ECIN 6AF
NVSH Huldeo Linnicd 2nd Flour, 1§ Thustle Steet Edinburgh EH2 IDF
NVSH TopCo Limited Cannen Place 78 Cannon Sireet, London ECYN 6AF
PFI Infrastructure Company plc S1 Janws Chambers, Athol Streut, Douglas iske OF Man ML LIE
PFI Infrastructure Finance Lutsted Cannon Place, 78 Cannuon Street London, EC4N 6AF
BFI Sensor Fanding Leanted Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street, London ECAN 6AF
PIF Vulcans Lane Linited N Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street Landon ECAN 6AF
PIF west Combpa Limited Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sircet London, ECIN 6AF
Proncr Custadial Finance Limnsted Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sireet, Londop ECAN 6AF
Pronner Custodial Investments Lanited Cannoa Place 78 Cannon Swent London, EC4N 6AF
Prnmer Custodial Sub debt Limied Cannon Place, 78 Cannoa Street London ECAN 6AF
Puch techurch Custodial Sewvices Lamited Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London ECAN 6AF
Reno Water Highland Linnted Cunnon Place 78 Cannan Sircet Londan EC4N 6AF
Rueao Water (Moray) Linud Cannon Piace, 78 Cannon Sincxt London ECSN 6AF
Reno Water (Tay) Linewed Cannon Place 78 Cannon Streut, London ECAN 6AF
Robenison Education {Abenleenshin ) Group Huldings Liminted Cannon Plage 78 Cannon Street, London ECAN 6AF
Rabenson Education (Abealeunshire) Holdings Linsted 2nd Floor, 4 Thistle Street, Edinburgh, EH2 IDF
Robenson Education (Aberdecnshine) Lumned 2ad Floor 11 Thistle Street Edinburgh, EH2 {DF
Rohcrtson Education (Ingleby Barwach) Group Holdings Limiled Cannon Place. 78 Cannon Sinset, Londan, EC4N 6AF
Ruberisun Educanon (Ingleby Bansich) Holdings Livuied Cannon Place 78 Canron Sireet, London ECHN 6AF
Raobenison Educanion (Ingleby Barwich ) Lunwted Cannon Place 78 Carnon Street, London, ECAN 6AF
Robenson Health (Chusier te Sireet) Group HDh!mgs Linmutd Cannon Place 78 Connon Strevt, London ECAN 6AF
Robertson Health (Chester le Sireet) Holdings Limucd Cannon Place 78 Cannon Street, London, ECIN 6AF
Ruberison Hualth (Chester fe Streery Linuted Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Street London ECHN 6AF
Sahiskury Realtheare Fachines (Holdings) Limited 2nd Floor 1§ Thistle Stecet Edanburgh EH2 IDF
Satishuery Healtheare Focrhnes Lanuted 20d Floor, §1 Thistk Street. Edmburgh EH2 EDF

SD Manne Suevices (Holdings) Lnmed Cannan Ploce, 78 Cannon Sircet London, ECSN 6AF
SD Mann Services Linnied Canswan Place 78 Cannon Stevel, London ECIN 6AF
Hchios BISIDA 11} I Place des Depnis, 92800 Putcaux France

Socieie des Bus Hybndes Dyonnas La Crenuere Ronhas, 79700 Mauskéon, France

TBEP tnvestnients Lahmited Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sirvet, London, ECIN 6AF
Tisenon Healthcar: Facisties {Holdmgs) Limnted 2nd Fluer, 11 Thistie Sircet Edinburgh EH2 (DF
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Turnover

The wrnover and toss before wx are aunbuable (o the one principal acuviy of the Group and anse enurely from contnuing

operations  An analysis of revenue 15 given below

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2044
£000 £000
Unuted Kingdom 312917 310,607
Other European Umon 10,715 44,219
Total revenue 323,632 354,826
Interest and similor items
: 31 Dec 2015 34 Dee 2014
£000 £000
Interest payable
Interest payabie on bank, foans and overdrafis (108,924) (92,520)
Interest payable on Eurobond (47,764) (46,070)
Interest on long term boad {11,266) {12,633)
Amaortisation of loan 15sue cosls 1,609 (8,213)
Total interest payable and similar nems {166,945) {159.436)
Interest receivable
Bank interest recervable 804 2,964
Other interest receivable 4476 3,256
Finance debtor interest receivable 53,643 61,492
Total 1nterest recervable 58,923 67,712
Nut snterest payable und simitar tems (108,022) {91,724}
Loss on ordinary activities before taxation
31 Dec 2015 3} Dec 2004
£000 £000
Loss on ordtnary actvities before taxation s stated after charging
Deprectation of tangible fixed asscts 20,725 20,686
Amortisation of forr value adjusiments 30,221 30,221
Wages and salanes 4,641 3,712
Souial sccunty costs 457 359
Fee payable w0 the company auditor for the acdit of the parent company, subsidiary 816 758
compames and consohdated accounts (parent company 2015 £4,000 2014 £4,000)
Feus payable to the company audilor for other seevices
- Restructunng and dihigence services® 414 600
- Tax comphance services 95 -

* A proportton of the 2014 restructuring fees were pind by the company’s parent company BIIF LP
There were 61 employees 1n the financra) year other than the Dircciors (2014 51)

None of the Directors of the Company received any remuneration from the Group duning the year (2014 £ml)  Attention

1s drawn to the paymems made to cenamn Directors of subsidiary underahings disclosed in note 19

18



BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Accounting policics (continued)
Financial instruments ,

A Nindncial asset or a Tinancral habiity 1s recogmised only when the entiy becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument

Basic financial snstruments are inmtally recogmeed at the transaction price, unless the arrangement conshitites a financing
transaciron, where 1t 15 recogmised at the present value of the future payments discounted at g market raie of interest for a
semelar debt instrument

Debi instruments are suhsequently measured ot amoniised cost

Other finuncial instruments are subsequenily measured at fasr value, with any changes recognised in the inconwe statement,
with the exception of hedging mstrumeats in a designated hedgaing relationshup

Financial assels that are measured at cost or amortised cost are reviewed for objective evidence of impairment at the end
ol cach reporting date If there is objective evidence of impairment, an imparrment toss 15 recogised in the income
statement immediaiely

For &Il equity instruments regardless of sigmificance, and other financial assets that are individually sigmificant, these are
assessed individually Tor impairment Other financial assets are cither assessed indivadually or grouped on the basis of
similar credit nisk characterisiies.,

Any reversals of impairment are recogmised 1 profit or loss immedhately, to the extent that the reversal does not resull 1n
o carrying amount of the financial asser that exceeds what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not
previously been recogmised

Hedge Accounting

Some enteties n the Group have entered into an arrangement with third parties that 1s dcslﬁncd to hedge Tutere cash MMows
arising on vanable rate interest loan arrangements, with the et effect of exchanging the cash flows arsing under those
arrangements for a stream of fixed mterest cash flows (Minicrest rate swaps”)  Some enties have also entered into an
arrangement with third partaes that 1s designed to hedge future cash receipts ansing from its principal actvity (RP1 swaps)
These eauties have designated that these arrangements are a hedge of another (non-derivative) financial instrument, 1o
mutipate the impact of potennial volanliy on the Group's net cash Nlows
1

To quahfy for hedge accounning, dacumentation 1s prepared specifying the hedging sirategy. the component transacuans
and methodalogy used for effectiveness measurement Changes an the carrying value of financial insiruments that are
designated and effecuve as hedges of future cash flows (Mcash Row hedges”) are recogmsed directly in o hedging reserve
i cquity and any ineffective poruon 15 recogmsed immediately in the income statemeni Amounts deferred i eguity 1in
respect of cash flow hedges are subsequently recognised in the income statement in the same penod in which the hedged
nem affects aet profit or loss or Ui bedging relationship 1s termimated and the underlying position being hedged has heen
exiinguished.

Copital risk monagement

The Group's objective when managing capial 1s 10 safeguard the Group's ability (o cortinue a5 2 going concern 1 order
to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stabetolders and to maimain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital,

In order 10 mainiain or adjust the capnal struciuere, ihe Group may adjusi the amount of dividends pard to shareholder,
retern capital 1o sharcholders, issue new shares or sell assets (o reduce debt.



BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the yeur ended 31 December 2015

Investment

Tirenon Heahheen Facilities Limuted

VLE Holdsngs Linuted

Vuleans Lane Estaies Liauted

Wantheek Healtheare Facitwies {Holdings) Lanited
Wanshech Healtheare Facibties Limed

WCEM Holdings Linued

Wist Cumhna Estaws Managenwent Luniied

Wost Lothian Educaunn Lamited

Registered office

Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Strect, Londan ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Sireet London ECSN 6AF
Cannon Place, 78 Cannon Stroet London ECAN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sireet Londun ECYN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Strest London. ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannon Sireet, London ECIN 6AF
Cannon Place 78 Cannan Streer, Londan ECIN BAF
2nd Foor. §1 Thistle Sincet, Edinbusgh EH2 1DE
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements .
For the year ended 3] December 2015

9 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2015 3 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade debiors 14,443 14,030 - -
Finance debior 43,115 48,212 - -
Amounts due from hank (nore 10) 12,280 11,640 - -
Prepayments and acerued mmcome 34,138 33,201 - -
Other debrors 32972 31,083 - -
Corporation lax recoverable 673 - . .
137,621 38,166 - -

The Group has no receivables which are imparred or past due  Refer to note 21 for further information in relation to crednt
rish exposure in the Graup

10 Debtors: amounts falling due alter one yeor

Group Group Company Compuany
. 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts due from bank 208314 226,982 - -
Finance debtor 1,099,556 1,149,770 - -

Depvative Ninancial wnstruments 574053 66,158

Deferred tax asset 61,790 52,086

~

1,426,713 1,494,996 - .

Amounts due from bank represents debt due from project companies within the Group, which was the sebject of a sub-
partgipation agreement between the band and o subsidiary company (PF1 Semor Funding Lumited) daied 28 July 2011
Theswe loans are secured by a fixed and floating charge over all the assets, nghts and underiakings of the individual project
companmies  Each project hay an individuat repayment profite with she final payment being senled an ihe end of cach project
CONLESSION
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

.

12

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Other creditors

Accruals

Corporation luxation

Onher laxes and social secunity cosss
Financy leases

Bank loans {(note 12(a))

Guaranteed sceured bonds (note 12(c))
Other loans (note 12(d))

Deferred tncome (note 12(g))

\

Creditors: amounts fatling due after on¢ year

Bank loans (note 12{a))

Eurohond (note 12(h))

Guaranieed secured honds (note 12(c))
Other loans (note 12(d))

Zero Coupon Bond (note 12{ce))

Other creditors (note §2(0))

Deferred mncome (note 12(gh

Finance leases (note 12 (h))

The repayment of bunk and other foans s due os follows

Group

Duc within ene year

Due hetween one and two years
Due hetween two and live years
Due in more than five years

Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
£000 £000 £000 1000
13,194 18,547 . -
26,581 60,047 - .
85,598 74,649 - -
. ]24 - ~Za
6,266 5,719 - -
2,139 1,934 - -
160,192 161,001 - e
8,634 5,551 - -
4,781) 3074 - -
13,150 4,198 - )
320,534 334,904 - -
Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014 31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2044
£000 £600 £000 £000
1,280,761 1,350,960 - -
617,875 575.874 . -
150,969 58,544 - A5
7,363 16,254 - -
3,758 3,408 - S5t
i2,791 8976 - -
40,938 41,101 - .
181 2,457 - -
2,114,636 2,157,574 - -
3t Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
: £000 £000
145,466 164,075
574,900 561.686
157,543 129,397
575,187 676,13}
1,453,096 1,531,289




BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

12

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (continued)

fa) Bunk loans

The tolal amount drawn down under bank loans a1 the year-end was £1,476,322,000 {2014 £1,534,946.000) Costs of
£35,369,000 (2014 £22,985,000) have been sei off agarnst the to1af toan drawdowns, with £1.009,000 (2014: £8.213,000)
of these credited to the income statement in the year

An amoum of £836,239,525 (2014 £817.651,000) relates to two semor banhing facihities. The first factuy relates 1o the
finance of 18 PFI projects and 1s secured by a fixed and floatng charge over the assets of these projects This facility
expires on 30 Sept 2035 During the year the second banbsng faeility was refinanced into two loan facibities Faciliy A
£483,507,000 which expires on 31 Decembuer 2025, and Faciluy B £50.000,000 winch 1s scheduled to be fully repaid by
31 December 2035 These new (acibities are secured over the dhsinbutions and shareholder loan payments from all
companies, excluding those securet) under the first facthty. The loan facilines have principal payments due on o six monthly
basis The Company has interest rate swap arrangements and under these arrangements the Company receives intercst on
a vuriable basis and also pays interest at 7 008% Faciluy B has a fixed lending rate of 4.182% The other bank loan of
£302,732,865 receives interest on a vanable basis and pays interest at a fixed rate of 8 55% This loan wall be repatd by 30
September 2035

The remasmng facilities redate 10 borrowsngs held by individual project subsidiary companies and they are sccured by way
of fixed and floating charges over the assets of the specific project company which holds the borrowipgs Matunity of these
faciluses ranpes from 2016 to 2035 Interest payeble on the Group's hank loans ranges from rates of 5 11% w0 7 9%,

(b} Eurcbond

A subsidiary 1n the Group has 1ssued a Eurobond totalling £617,875,000 (2014 £575,874,000) which was subscribed for
in full by the ulumate parent entity, BIIF LP. This Eurcbond bears inierest at 8% per anaum and lalls due for repayment
on 9 Januwary 2019

(c) Secured bonds

A subsuhiary has 1ssued, at par value, £87,190,000 (2014 £47,190,000) 3 443% index-linked guaranteed secured bonds
due 2004-2036 The bond s secured by way of o fixed and floaung charge over the assets of the subsidary and two
wmmedhate hofding compames  Both the 1nterest and principal balances are adjusted for the increose i the Retal Price
Index at six monthly matervals, which cumulatively at 31 December 2015 amounted (0 56 7% (2014 54 6%)

A subsidiary has isseed £79,3§4,000 (2014: £79,314,000) 7 12% secured bonds which are due 2028 The boad is secured
hy way ol a fixed ond feating charge over the assets of the subsidiary

The matunty profife of all bonds s as follows:
31 Dec 2015 3 Dec 2014

£000 £000

Amounts repayable in one year or less or on demand 8,634 5551
Between one vad two years 8,340 6,745
Between two and five years 637,570 596,990
Over five years 128,029 i35.492
782,573 744,778

Unamortised finante costs assoctated with the bond 1ssue (1,339 {1.401)
781,236 743,377

Included wihon creditors amounis falling due within one year (8,634) (5951}
Amounts felling duc afier ene year 772,602 737,826

30
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Notes to the financial statements
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12

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (continued)
{d) Other loans (all unseeured)

A subsichary i the group has issucd loan notes totalling £948,000 (2014 £897,000) which bear interest at 13 5%, Of thiy
balance, £661,000 (2014 £610,000) represents unpaud 1nterest on the loan notes and 15 due for payment within twelve
months The balance falls due for paymeni on 31 March 2032.

A sthsidiary in the group has 1ssued a £35.000 (2014 £3),000; loan siock instrument  The loan bears a Coupon of 13 5%
per annum and payment of capnal falls due in the year 2035, The Coupon en the printpal amount accrues duily and 1s
payable on 30 September and 31 March ¢ach year The amount 1s charged to the income statement as interest fulls payable
The sum was advanced under a subordinated loan agreement and 15, therelore, unsecured and would rank alongside ordinary
creditors in the event of a winding up

The same subsidiary also issued a £127,000 (2014 £121,000) subordinated loan note issued ai a price of 20 pence for cach
£1 m nomunal value of loan stoch held. The loan bears a Coupon of 13.5% per annum and paymem of capital folls due in
the year 2035 The Coupon on the principal amount acerues duly and 1s payable on 30 September and 31 Murch cach year
The sums were sdvanced under o subordinated loan agreement and rank alongside ordinary creditors bu abowve the loan
stoch detarled above in the event of a winding up

The sume subsidiary also 1ssued a £267,000 (2014, £267,000) subordinated loan note The loan bears a Coupon of 13 5%
per annum and payment of capial falls due m the year 2035 The Coupen or the principal amount accrucs daily and 1s
payable on 30 September and 31 March cach year The sums were advanced under o subordinated loan agreeement and rank
glongside ardinary credtors but above ihie toan stack detarled above an the event of a winding up

A subsihary 1n the group has sssued an unsecured Toan with a value of £1,033,000 (2014 £1,033,000} duc 2037, heaning
interest ot 13 04%

A subsidiary in the group has issued loan stock with a vatue of £591,000 (2014 £709.000) The loan stock bears inerest
at 14% per annum and s repayable i semi-annuat instadments with the final payment due on 31 Augusi 2018

A subsidiary in the group has issued loan stock with a value of £715,000 (2044, £715,000) bearing 1nterest av 13% per
annum  Of this hatance, £64.000 (2014 £64,000) represents unpad anterest on the Joan notes and is due for payment within
twelve months The principal is repayable in full in February 2036

A subsidiary tn the group has issued loan stock with a value of £309,000 (2014, £1,854,000) beaning interest at 9% and s
repayable i instabments to December 2019

A subsihary in the group has issucd loan stach with o value of £2,313,000 (2014 £3,707,000) The loan stock bears
iterest at 1% and has repayment dates between 15 December 2012 and 15 December 2047,

A subsidiary 1a the group has 1ssued toan stoch wuh a volue of £5,805,000 (2014, £6,259,000) The loan stack hears
snierest ai the rate per annum determined by the lender which will he caluulated according to the aggregate of margin,
LIBOR., and mandatory costs The debi 1s repayable in 41 consecutive six monthly stalments, the first of which was
repatd i August 2002 with the Ninal insialment due on 31 August 20213

A subsidiary in the group has issued loan stock within o value of Emil (2014; £3,356,000) The loan 1S interest free and 1s
repayable between 31 March 2016 and September 2025

fe) Zero conpon bond
A subsidiary company has issucd & cero coupun bond with o cedemption value of £8,000,000 (2014 £8,000,000} on 3

Ociober 2022 This bond was 1ssued @8 a discoum value of £633.000 which 15 amortised 10 matunity a1 a constant rale on
the carrying amount of the dehd

31
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BIIF Holdco Limited

Notes to the financial statements
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12 Creditors: amounts falling due after one year (continued)

(N Other creditars

inchuded i other crediiors 15 o decommassioming provision of £379,000 (2014 £345,000) which provides for the fulure
costs of decommissiomng a wind Girm The provision has been discounted at an annual rute of 10% and this discount 15
charged 1o the statement of comprehensive income until 2027, the estimated date of decommissioning

{g) Deferred income

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
Group £000 £000
As at | Junuary 45,299 45,532
Anising during the penod 11,942 -
Amortised duning the penod 2,151 233
Forewgn exchange transtation sdjustment (1,002) -
As at 31 December 54,088 45,299

Deferred immcome is divided as follows

In fourteen projects, on complenon of construction of the facilnies, the public sector clu.m tade payments to the
fespechive project compantes (Easthrook Faciliies Limited, Covesea Limited, GH Newham Limited, GH Bodnin
Limned, Kira Lienied, Bannockhburn Homes Limued, KE Progect Limuted, LH Praject Limuted, Machne Linted,
NewSchools (Peaweddig) Limied, Connect AS0 Limited, Innovate East Lottwan Limmted, Blackshaw Healihcare
Services Limited and Adams Campus Limited) as a coninbusion 1o the capatal cost of the works  These contaibutions
were teferred and will be amortised over the hie of the project The batance as a1 31 December 2015 was £27,861,000
(2014 £28,823,000).

£9.790,000 (2014 £13,781.000) w respect of funding granis which will he amonused over the hienme of the PFI
CONCESHION Comracl

£5,524,000 (2014 £5,864,000) receaved following the arrangement of an RPI SWAP winch wild he amortised over the
hienme of the comract

£10.913,000 (2014 £rul) 1n respuct of asset renewal underspend  £11,942,000 was acquired sn the year in respect of

asset renewal underspend
¢

Of the balance an the year-end, 1t is expected 1hay £13,150,000 (2014
£40,938,000 (2014 £41,101,000) will be reahised after 12 months

(h) Finonee feases

The future mimimum finance tease payments are as follows

£4,198,000) will be realised withun 12 months and

Group
31 Dec 2015 3| Dec 2014
£000 £000
Not later than one year 2,139 1,934
Later than ane year and not later than five years 181 2457
2,320 4.391

Company

The Campany did nat have any Grance leases at 31 December 2015 (2014 none)
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13 Derivative financial instruments

Linbilities
Interest rate swaps
. RPI swops

‘44, Deferred Laxation
Group

As at | fanuary
Prior year adjustment

Revised balance as at § January

Deferred tax disposed
Movement through other comprehensive income
Deferred tax charge/{erednt ) for the year

As a1 31 December

Analysis of deferred tax balonces:
Accelerated capital allowances
Denvitives

Other tming differences

Losses

Group Group Company Company
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2044 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2014
£000 £000 EDGD £000
431915 420,008 - A
93,54 139,498 - cus
525,459 559,506 - -
31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2014
£000 £000
) 6,909 4,456
(258) (316)
6,651 4,140
- 315
6,887 .
6819 2.454
6,719 £,909
76,649 94,040
(61,790) (52,31
9,249 (5,487)
(17,439) {(29.310)
6,719 6,909

The Group has an un-proveded deferred tax asset of £28,182,000 (2014 £59,750,0600) The deferred wox asset unises on
unrcheved losses within ceriann Group compames This assel would be recoverable 1f e Group companics made sufficient

1axable profits in future penods against which the losses could be offset.

15. Called up share capital

sl

Group and Company

Authorised
180 Ordinary shares of £1 coch

Issued, called up and fully paid
| Ordnary share of £1 ecach

31 Dec 2015
4

100

31 Dec 2004
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16 Net cosh flow from operaling activities

Reconciliation of profit to net cash (outflow)inflow from aperating activitics 31 Dec 2015 3t Dec 2014

£000 £000

Opcrating profit ' 58,157 51,012

Reversal of impairment of investments 4,611) {3,403)

Depreviation charge 20,725 20,686

Amortisatton of fair value adjustments 15,787 15,787

Amorusation of deferred income (8,789 233

Decreasef(Increase) in debiors 47,832 13,198)

(Decrease YIncnease in creditors (8,656) 37445

Nt cash (outflow)/inflow [rom operating acuivitics 121,045 118,562

Reconciliation of cash and cosh equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following
Non- cash

1 Jan 2015 Caush Now mavements Al Dec 2015

£060 £000 £000 E000

Cash in hand and at bank - 322,746 (2 144) - 220,602

Debt payuble within one year (171 560) (1.185) - {175,745}

Deht paynble after ane year {2 107.497) 18 387 {4.588) 12,873,698)

{2.279.057) 4 202 {4 S8RR) {2,249,.440)

toan payments recervable within one year H.640 640 - 12,280

Loan payments recenable after one yedr 226982 (18.668) - 208,314

238,622 (18 028) - 220,594

Teral {1.417.689) 14,030 {4,.588) {1.808.47)

‘s

T
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’

Parent underiaking and ultimate controlling party

The ulumate parent and controlling ¢ntity 15 BIIF LP BIHF LP 15 owned by 4 number of investors, with no one investor
having individual conirol

Related porty transactions

The Group paid £41,479 (2014 £41,250) 10 the Sedexo Group for the services of the Sodexo employees as directors to HpC
King's College Hosprial {Holdings) Limuted, a subsidiary of the Group in which Sodexo hold o minority interest At 31
December 2015, £m1 (2014 £ml) remained outstanding

Sodexo Group alse manage the nen-chinical services for HpC Kings College Hosputal (Holdings) Linmited, a subsidiary of
the Group ir which the Sodexo Group liold a2 minoniy 1nterest The amount charged lor these services was £l (2014 £nil)
At 31 December 2015, £9,092 (2014 £9,092) remained outstanding.

Sodexo Group also manapge the Ifecycle and estate serviees for HpC Kings College Hospital (Holdings) Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group 1n wlich the Sodexo Group hold a minanty iterest The amount charged for these services was
£1,342,319 (2014 £1,314,709) At 3] December 2015, Emil (2014 £ml) remained outstanding

A Director of Innovate East Lothsan Limited duning the penod 1s alvo o Darector of FES FM Limned FES FM Limited
provided facilities management services to the Company The amount charged for these services was £3,667.4%9 (2014
£3,498,604) At 31 December 2015, £727,734 (2014 £704,458) remained outstanding  All contracts arc camried out al arms-
tength

A Dircctor of Innovate East Lothian Limited during the penod 1s also o Director of FES Limited FES Limited 15 the holder
of luan noles issued by Innovate East Lothian Limited 1otalhng £394,444 (2014 £388,096) and loan notes issucd by Innovaie
Eas! Loruon (Holdings) Limited totalling £35,000 (2014 £31,000)

The Group has subcontracted the design, busld, operation and maintenance of Alert Commumcations Group Holdings
Limited to Bahcoch Commumications Limued, a company which, through an inermedrary holding company, holds a
munorily interest m Alert Commumcations Group Holdings Limited  During the year Alert Commumcanons Limsted was
invoiced  £3,293,496 (2014 £3,372,153) by Bahcock Commumcatons Limited 0 connection with operation and
mantenance fees At 31 December 2008, £549.468 (2014 £538,948) remained outstanding

Veolia manage the operauonal achivities of Calchment Limited, Catchment Moray Limited and Catchment Fay Limited,
subsidinnies of the Group in wlich Veolia Group hold o mimority interest The total invoices raised in the year in respect of
these services amounted o £11.852,372 (2014 £11,594,596) At 31 Decemher 2015, £1,825,585 (2014 £2,446,679)

remaned outstanding

Balfour Beanty Investments Limned, o subsidiary of Balfour Beauty ple, 1s employed under a Secondmem Arrangement with
Conncet AS0 Limated for the provision of managenal stafl  The value of the services provided 1n the year was £395,000
{2014 £395,000) At 3! December 2015, £ml (2014, Enil) rematned outstanding ,

Balfour Beauy Infrastruciure Scrvices Limuted. a subsidhary of Balfour Beatty ple, 15 employed under a comtract with
Conneet A50 Lirited for the provision of technical supervision and marntenance of a roadway The value of 1he contract 1n
the year was £4,673.000 (2014 £4,673,000) At 31 December 2015, £mit (2017 £m}) remained outsionding

The group has subcontrucied the design, build, operation and maimenanee of Socicte Des Bus Hybrids Dyjonaws to Hesliez
Bus, 4 company which holds a minoruy interest in Societe Des Bus Hybnds Dyonnais During the year Socicwe Des Bus
Hybrids Dijonnms was invarced £500,235 (2014 £444,777) by Heuliez Bus for these services At 31 December 2018,
£85,595 (2014 £47,336) reauuned outstanding

The Group has subcontracted the design, huild and management through construciton of Helios B 1o Spie Bangnolles, a
company which holds a mimmonty wierest 1n Hehios B Spie Batignolies also rectives a reimbursement of the costs of a
corporate guarantee During the year Helios B was inverced £9,542,240 (2064 £35,210,447) by Spie Batipnolles 1a
connecyon with these services AL 11 December 20185, £5,152 (2014, £1,967,920) remained outstanding

o
‘
35
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21

Pension

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for is emiployees
The amount recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income was

N

31 Dec 2015 3 Dec 2014
E(HI0 £000

Current peniod contrthutions 285 231

Financial instruments

(a) Carcying amount of linancial instruments

31 Dec 2015 31 Dec 2004

£000 £008
Assets measured al amortised costs 1,531,791 1.609.811
Asscts measured at cost less impatrment 329,420 287,887
Asscts measured at Lar value 57,083 66,158
Liabyhties measured at far value through profit and toss (525,459) (554,506)
Liabuliics measured as amortised cost (2,234,332) {2,274,666)

{b) Financial instruments measured ot fair value
Derivanve financeal mistruments

The fair value of interest rate swaps 15 hased on valuavons provided by the swap counterparties Those valuations are tested for
reasonableness by discounting estimaied future cash Nows based on the terms and matrty of cach conieact and vsing market
interest rates for a sumilar instrument @ the measurement date

The interest raies used 1o discount estimated cash flows, where applicable are based on markel imerest rates

The Far value of RPI swaps 1s hased on valuatons provided by the swap counterparties Those valuations sre tested for
reasonablencss by discounung estimated future cash Mlows based on the terms and maturity of cach contract and using market
forceast inflation rates

N

The amount of change 1n fair value aitnbutable 1o own cred risk cannot be measured rehabilny

The denvative contracts used by the group are tymical for PFI projects Where projects are debl-Tunding. interest on the loan s
calculated by reference to a floating rate Interest rate swaps hedge Libor fuctuanons and mingate the rish that debt interest costs
will fluctuate as Libor Auctvates The full amount of the senior debt service payment 1s hedged 1 this way

RPI swaps are used to hedge (uctuations in the inflaton index which 15 relevant for the project Low inflaton would otherwise
cause 4 shortfall in cash with which to make semor debi service payments RP1 swaps are structured 1n such o way to ensure that
any volanlity n cash flow for senior debt service that could anse due 10 inflaion fluciuations is effecuvely neutralized

Interest rate swaps and RPI swaps, where used, are condimons imposed on the PF project company by the semor debt provider
10 ¢nsure stabnhty i cash flows

{¢) Hedge accounting

The following table endicates the peniods 1n which the cash lows associated with cash flow hedging instruments are expected to
occur and affect profit and loss as required by FRS 102 29(a) for the cash Now hedge accounting models
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Financial instruments (centinned)

Carrying
amount

Expected 1yearorless 1to<2ycars 2to<5ycars '?‘years and-

Period ended
3t December 2015

Interest rate swaps:
Liabshitics

RPI swaps:
Liabilitics N

Period ended
31 Decemhber 2014

Interest rate swaps:
Liabilities -

RPI swaps:
Liuatihilies

cash flows over
£000 £000 £000 £000 renn
431,915 43,238 170,882 46,828 170,967
- 9354 9,364 37,010 10,142 37,028
405,783 43479 148,844 34,289 179.171
139,498 14,947 51.169 ) 11,788 61.594

The group uscs hedge accounting e line wish FRS102 12

Interest rate swaps are used as a hedging instrument agam a floating rate loans as (he hedged wem RPI swpas are used as a
hedging instrument against that porton of umilary payment receipis which are required w mahe persodic semor debt service

paymeats

Fair value of these hedging insteuments are reported in pote 16 The amount of the change in fair value of the hedging instruments
recognised i other comprehensive income for the penod and the amount thal was recyeled to profit or loss for the penod are
shown n the statement of consolidated other comprehensive income

{d) Fair valucs

The amounts for all linancial assets and financial lishilities camed at fair value are as follows

Interest rate swap coniracis
RPI swap contricts

Fair value
3] Dec 2015
£000

374,862
93,544

Farr value
31 Dec 2004
£000

353.850
139.498
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22, Transition to FRS 102

This 15 the first year that the Group has presented its results under FRS 102 The last financial statements under the UK
GAAP were for the year ended 31 Pecember 2014 The date of trunsition 1o FRS 102 was | January 2004 Sci out below
are the changes i accounting pohcies which reconcile profit for the finuncial year ended 31 December 2014 and the tonal
equity as 21 1 Jonuary 2014 and 31 December 2014 beyween UK GAAP s previously reported and FRS 102

Profit for the financial year N 3171272014
- £'000
UK GAAP - As previously reported (127.545)
Hedge reserve A 78,043
investment properties B (148)
Effecuve Iaterest Rote adjustment on bank loans C 161
Deferred 1ax impact of adjustments D (9,189)
Total adjustment w profit {or the financial year 68,867
FRS 102 . (58.678)
Other Comprehensive Income 3171272014
£'060
UK GAAP - As previously reporied (654)
Denvative financial msiruments A (68,991)
Invesiment properties B ° 148
Non-controlltng interest (489)
Share of Joint venture and Associate other comprehensive income . E (40.207)
Tax relating 10 components of other comprehensive income
- Denvauve financial instruments 421)
FRS 102 (110614}
Total Equity 01/81/2014 317122014
£'000 £000
UK GAAP - As previously reported (271,055} (399,255)
Denvative financiad mstrumenis . (23,271 (14,225)
Denvative finaneial instruments of joint ventures and associies (117,283 (157,489)
Effecuve Interest Rate adjusiment 1o bank loans (5.192) (5.031)
Deferred taxalton 61.903 52293
FRS 102 {354.904) (523,707)
A Derivative Finoncial fnslrurnn-nts

FRS 102 requares denvative financial mstruments to be recopmised ot fair value Previously under UK GAAP the Group dul
recogmise these instrements e the financial statemems, however hedge accounung was not apphed Waith the change to
FRS102 the group has taken the opponumity to review s sccounbing treatment in respect of denivatve linancial siuements
which are now hedged  Accordingly, at iransitwn o hedging reserve of £269,095,000 was cecognised

B Investment Propertics

Under FRS 102, changes in the fair value of invesiment properties are recorded in the stalement of comprehensive sncome
Under previous UK GAAP shese changes were recorded in the Statement of Total Recogaised Gains and Losses
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22

C

Transition to FRS 102 (continued)

Effective Interest Rafe adjustment fo bank Ioans

Under FRS 102, debt insiruments must be recorded ot amortised cost using the cffective interest method  On transition the
toans were ipcreased by £2,056,000 with a further £160,000 credit recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for
the year ended 31 December 2014

Deferred taxotion
The Group has accounted for deferred taxauion on wransiion as follows

(1) Derivauve financial insiremenis -~ Defurred tax of £60,834.000 has been recopmsed at 20% on the habilay recopmised
on transition ot | January 2014, In the year ended 31 December 2014 the company has recogmsed a credit of £421 i the
statement of comprehensive income an respect of the increase 10 the value of denvative financtal struments

N

(b} Investmem Properties - Deferred wax of £30,000 has been recognised at 20% of the gainftoss on revaluation

{c) Effective Interest Rate adjusiment 10 bank loans - Deferred 1ax of £1,039.000 has been recogmsed at 20% of the
adjustment. The deferred tax balance will be amortised on a straight hee hasis over a 10 year pervod.

Share of Joint Venture and Asseciate other comprehensive income

As FRS 102 requires denivative financial mstruments to be recogmsed at L value, and brought on to the batunce sheet, if
an mvestment has chosen to hedge account for derivatives, then the Group's share of movements on the cash flow hedge 1s
reflected 1n the Other Comprehensive Income of the group  Previously under UK GAAP the Group did not recognise a
share of these instruments in the inancial statements.

Statement of cash fMlows

The Group's stalement of cash Mlows reflects the presentanon reguirements of FRS 102, which 1s different to that prepared
under FRS | In addinon the statement of cash flows reconeiles to cash and cash equivalents whereas under previous UK
GAAP the cash flow statement reconciled 10 cash Cash and cash equivatents are defined in FRS 102 as “cash on hand and
demand depowts and short term highly biquid investments that are readily convertible o known amounts of cash and thm
are subject 1o on insignificamt rish of changes 1n value® wherens cash 1s defined in FRS | as ‘cash in hand and deposits
repayable on demand wah any quahfying institution, less overdrafts from any quabfying instiuion repayable on demand’

The FRS | delinition 1s more restrictive



